



Ratified treaty no. 144, Documents relating to the negotiation of the treaty of January 24, 1826, with the Creek Indians. January 24, 1826

Washington, D.C.: National Archives, January 24, 1826

<https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/U52SINLGMDD2A85>

As a work of the United States government, this material is in the public domain.

For information on re-use see:

<http://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/Copyright>

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

RATIFIED TREATY NO. 144
DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE NEGOTIATION OF THE
TREATY OF JANUARY 24, 1826, WITH THE CREEK INDIANS

Copy.

Outline of an Interview between
The Secretary of War and
The delegation of Greeks,
now in this City -

Ostrothle-Yoholo, Head Chief
and Speaker -

November 30th: 1825.

Ct

Outline of an Interview between the Secretary of War
and the Delegation of Crooks, now in this City. —

O. Pothle - Yoholo, Head Chief, and Speaker -

November 30th 1825.

Secretary of War -

Are you prepared now, to enter upon the
business of your Mission? or is it your wish to defer it 'till
the arrival of your friends?

O. Pothle - Yoholo -

We are prepared; and I think it desirable
to proceed to business, at once, as the Great Council of our
Great Father is about to assemble, and we want to know,
before the Great Council fire is lit, what are the views of
the Government in relation to us. We do not think it
necessary to wait the coming of our Brothers. We have
power to proceed.

Secretary of War -

I wish you to state by what power you
have been appointed.

O. Pothle

O-Pottle-Yoholo -

At the Council at the Broken Arrow, Gen. Gaines expressed a wish to see some of us here; and when at Tuckabachee we were delegated by the whole nation to come on.

Secretary of War -

Have you any written document shewing this appointment?

O-Pottle-Yoholo -

We have no writing. We got our power from the mouths of the Nation, as is usual. We thought of a written power, and intended to come to the Cherokee Nation to get Clerks - but the power was written, and will be seen, as we know it was to be sent on.

Secretary of War -

I wish to correct a mistake which it appears you labor under. You are here now at your own request, which was made known to your Great Father by your agent Col^o. Browne, in April last. That request was granted. It is true General

Gai

Gaines said what you state, but it was only a repetition by him of what was granted before. I mention this only for the purpose of correcting an error in regard to the origin of this visit.

O, Pothle - Yoholo -

It is true, - the Head Chiefs of the Nation were talking last Spring of their distresses before the agent. Our troubles have laid upon us. We turned our eyes to our Great Father. He is our guardian. We said we want to see him. We asked the agent to say so. We got his answer, as you say. We heard the same thing from Gen^r. Gaines.

Secretary of War -

I am directed by your Great Father the President to whom you looked in your troubles, and who sent you word to come and counsel with him as you wished, to tell you how deeply you grieved him, when after that permission was given, you took up the Tomahawk and did the great violence with it which you have done. He expected you to seek your redress of him, and not to strike yourselves. But you did strike,

and

and by so doing you have caused very general and deep dissatisfaction; made yourselves many enemies, embarrassed your Great Father, and fill'd him with deep regret. He thinks it due to the occasion that he should make this known to you, frankly.

O-Pothle-Yoholo -

'Tis true, we did in our grief strike --
But it was an affair of the nation. In all cases of National concerns the consent of the Nation is first had. The names of its Chiefs are taken down - The names of the agent and the Interpreter also. In the late affair this was not done. A new way was attempted not known to the nation. The Nation could not walk in it.

Secretary of War -

These violences embarrass the United States. Had they not been committed your Great Father would not feel the difficulties which now attend this interview, and which must attend every step of this business. The other party say they are aggrieved. They are coming on - at least the papers tell us so. What their object is, they will make known also.

O-Pothle

(2.)

O-Pothle-Yoholo -

I expect all the transactions of the late disturbances have been laid before our Great Father - I know writings were entered into in our Nation on both sides. I doubt not the President has seen them all. We can judge. We are willing that he should judge. I wish our negotiation now begun to be in writing also. I wish it for my people. I look for protection to the United States.
I expect the late Treaty to be cancell'd.

Secretary of War -

What is the number of the other party?

O-Pothle-Yoholo -

The number of M'Intosh's followers is very small. They all lived near him. Since his death they fled - some to Georgia and others elsewhere. The Heads of families, I do not think exceed Twenty. When the agent arrives with the Coweta part of our delegation he will be able to tell how many there were who undertook to sell our country.

Secretary of War -

I have no objection to conduct the
nego-

Negotiation in writing. I think it best, however, first to converse with you to ascertain the nature and object of your visit from yourselves, that when these are fully disclosed, we may proceed to business upon the points which you may wish to discuss, and confine the discussion to them.

O. Pothle-Yoholo -

I am well satisfied.
Secretary of War -

What are your objections to the late Treaty? do you object to the substance of it, or to the manner in which it was made? If your objections be to the manner, only, and the President would be willing to look across it, as if it did not exist, would you be willing to make another, substantially, like it?

O. Pothle-Yoholo -

I have objections to the manner of making that Treaty due to the substance of it. It was not made by the Muscogee Nation, and who else has a right to make it? But that is not all.

The

The Muscogee Nation have objections to selling any more lands. They have parted from a great deal. The land that stands fast under the white people's feet keeps slipping from under the feet of the red people. We have now hardly enough for our women and children to stand upon. Why cannot we be allowed to have land, and homes, and live like our white Brothers, and learn of them how to be comfortable?

Secretary of War -

You say you have but little lands left, and hardly enough for your women and children to stand upon, what is the number of your people who live on the ceded Territory?

O-Pothle-Yoholo -

We do not understand any thing about lines that we can't see - all the lands belong to all our people, the ceded and those that were not ceded. There are four present as delegates who live on the ceded Territory. Selocta - Mad Wolf - Ledge and Yoholo Micco, They have so little land, that they could not live upon it.

Sec? -

Secretary of War-

How many acres of lands were left you under the late Treaty?

O. Pothle-Yoholo -

We do not know how to reckon by acres but the Country left by the Treaty is so small that the Nation could not live upon it. We have come here to make complaint - to tell our sorrows - to utter our grievances to our Great Father, to shew that the Treaty was made by fraud, by thiev[er], by walkers in the night. The Muscogee Nation would not object to a fair Treaty, honestly made, a Treaty that had no foul blots on it, and that should be made at their Council house where their Chiefs sit, and who should be properly authorized.

Secretary of War -

Your Great Father in sending Commissioners to you to treat for your lands did not intend to commit fraud. They were sent to make a fair Treaty. And now that a Treaty is made there is great difficulty, because if it be fraud-

fraudulent, your Great Father cannot cancel it. It can be done only by the great Council of the Nation who put their seal upon it and made it fast - if it is done at all. Your Great Father did hope that as there is so much difficulty in this affair, that some method would be agreed upon by you for a reconciliation of these difficulties; and that you would agree to carry the substance of this Treaty into effect, in a new one made by yourselves as the heads of the Nation; and that you would be willing to occupy lands West of the Mississippi away from the White Man, to live in future, and under some friendly helps for your improvement in peace and prosperity. If to accomplish such a reconciliation an additional sum of money would be acceptable, and you would name it, Your Great Father would consider the offer, and do all he could to settle this difficulty.

O. Pothle-Yahlo-

The Creek Nation are not unfriendly to the Whites, and have no objection to live near the white people, and it is their wish to live near their Great Father the President of the United States. —

The

The land they live on is their own. Their homes are
there. They never sold them. But an attempt has
been made to take these all away - We have come
as Orphans to ask our Great Father's protection.
Secretary of War -

Your Great Father saw and pitied
your situation, and seeing that your difficulties
had grown to a great height, and wishing to reconcile
the parties, as far as possible, determined to convene
your Nation which was done by Gen. Gaines.
He was instructed to ask you as a Nation, whether
you had any objection to cede your lands in Georgia,
and what price you would be willing to take for
those lands. Your Nation consented to dispose of
their lands within the limits of Georgia, and have
stated the price they are willing to take for them.
They fixed the price at 300,000 Dollars, and an
equal quantity of lands, acre for acre West of the
Mississippi, and I now hold in my hand the written
agreement to that effect, with the names of your
chiefs to it. You will know them when they are read to you.

(The

(The paper was read and the names of the Chiefs) Your Interpreter, Hamby, has one of these, and will bring it with him.

O-Pothle-Yoholo-

I have heard of that paper before - It is the power I referr'd to at the beginning of this Council. I believe it to be correct.

Secretary of War -

I will now read to you a letter from Gen^e Gaines. In it is his talk to your Nation. -

(It was read.)

Secretary of War -

Are the names to that paper (the paper containing the terms of the proposed cession,) the names of your Chiefs?

O-Pothle-Yoholo-

Yes - they are the Chiefs of our Nation.

Secretary of War -

After the deepest reflection, and beset with great embarrassment Your Great Father thought it best to direct Gen^e. Gaines to make you the Pro-

proposal he did, and which has been read to you. I suppose you have no objection to carry the agreement into effect, according to the direction of your Nation.

O. Pothle-Yohols -

The subject is embarrassing to us also. It is of great importance. Clouds rest upon it. Our nation expects us to act under a clear sky. We must reflect well, and Counsel about what is to be done, and will give you an answer tomorrow.

Secretary of War -

It is not the wish of your Great Father to urge you as to time. You can wait if you think it desirable 'till your friends arrive. But it would be agreeable if the business could be settled this week.

O. Pothle-Yohols -

I have full confidence in the Government of the United States. I am here as a supplicant. I am glad to be spoken to familiarly and kindly. The delegation will reply in writing tomorrow, if possible; if not, as soon as they can.

Sec 9

(4.)

Secretary of War -

We can do more than prepare an agreement. The Congress must decide upon it; and accept, or reject it. Your Great Father, as I told you has no power beyond this, in this case. The power is with the great Council of the Nation to which all will be submitted.

O-Pothle-Yoholo -

As I have said before the subject is of great importance to us - and we must think much about it. Our responsibility is great.

Secretary of War -

Your responsibility is lessened by the instructions to you from your Nation. Your Nation has agreed what it will do; and you are instructed to carry their decision into effect. This will make your Councils light.

O-Pothle-Yoholo -

I have nothing more to add for the present.

Form N^o. 2
Opoett Yoholo &
others, Creek deputation,
to the Secy of War.

3. Decr. 1825

+ Relative to Gen. Gaines'
"last proposition was
reasonable & just"
before

Cw

G

Hon. James Barber

Brown's Hotel 3d December

1825.

Secretary of War.

Franco & brother,

Since we had the honor of an interview with you, in regard to our difficulties, we have had your proposals under our careful consideration. We have particularly attended to the instrument of writing given by our Chief in Council to Genl. Gaines, in which our great Council ~~feir~~ has expressed the Opinion that Genl. Gaines' Last proposition was reasonable & just, agreeable to existing circumstances. We also in that paper find, that we are clothed with the highest authority of our Nation, at a time, our hearts are compelled to look on the dark clouds which hang over our Nation. We know & we hope that you are convinced as the great Master of Breath knows that our troubles & difficulties have been produced by our enemies, men who regard Speculation more than Truth & Honor. But it is vain at this time to complain of our wrongs: we feel but can't find utterance to express them. We are convinced that our

Great father, the President, is a just & magnanimous man. We see this in his talk and we also know that the nature of his Government is such that however well convinced, he may be, of the badness of the Treaty ratified in his Council last winter, that he alone has not the power to declare it null & void. When we first started to see our father, it was our determination to appeal to Congress for redress, and request of that civilised body the annulment of the Treaty made by the Commissioners and the Factor at Fort York. We came to tell them that as our destiny, & the happiness of our wives & babes were in their hands, to restore the whole Four Lands, and as we had not done wrong to withhold their strength from opposition. But we have heard the talk of our father the President. It has done our hearts good to notice, his disposition to render justice and restore peace & harmony to his children. We have yielded to parental kindness. Long has been the struggle & painful the effort - to sacrifice a piece of our heart to aid our father to restore tranquility to his children. We have yielded to policy & contrary to our previous - determinations. Nothing less than powerful reasons has influenced our decision - that the fears of our grey headed mothers may cease to frown, & that the Oneida females may no longer suckle their babes in grief. It is on their account we have consented not to run the risk of hazarding the -

whole; in our appeal to the Representatives of a-
great Nation. As we have no claim to leave the
grains of our fathers for the west, we have agreed-
to surrender all our claim & title to the Lands -
east of the Chatahoochee river, for money.
We respectfully suggest to you our determination -
not to cede any more than the Lands east of -
the river & to have the east bank, up to high -
water mark as the boundary between us & Georgia.
A dry line will never do between us. The ac-
knowledgment of that line on your part, will -
afford facility to an arrangement with you &
other considerations will the Delegation consent -
to enter into an agreement. We may as well be -
an annihilated at once as to cede any portion of -
Land west of the river. We have enclosed a -
Sketch of the terms on which we will make the
desired arrangement and hope that it will
meet your approbation & the acceptance
of the Great Council. Our Sketch contains
the items, which we wish entered in the articles
of agreement & will expect that the instru-
ment to be signed by the contracting ^{parties} to be -
written at your order. As our Lands are
now reduced to narrow bounds, we shall in conse-
quent commence the work of civilization to render
our state of existence tolerable. We shall on
the address a Memorial to the Great Council
of our father, when he submits the talks on paper -

connected with the last Treaty. We have strong
enemies, who from childhood have talked with
Books. We can say but little and that little we
are proud to say will spring from uncorrupted
sources. We are sons of the Forest, but endowed
in intellect, by the same Spirit, who thought us
not unworthy of his creation. Free as air and
as free as the birds of sweetest song, we claim
the privileges acknowledged to all stations, and en-
titled to be considered as friends & allies of
the U. States. We know that an attempt has
^{been made} by the Governor of Georgia & his friends
to injure the good people of the U. States
against us. We however console ourselves with
a belief, that Government will not respect
an assertion without proof. When the fron-
tiers of Georgia were invaded by the Red-
sticks we were the first to protest it. In
the fierceness of battle, when the warwhoop
was keenest, were we not found by the side
of the whiteman? Let them who have been
so unkind as to call us "Hos-tile", seek a reply
from General Jackson. Our character
have been assailed and we have thus frankly
told our feelings to our father the President.
We entertain the best friendship for the U. States,
and we shall never be found wanting in duty to

assist our white brothers in repelling the assault
of enemies from over the Big Water.

In concluding our letter we will observe, that
the last proposition mentioned by our Chiefs -
made by Genl. Gaines was the request, to -
our Nation to cede to the U. States all the -
lands east of the Mississippi. This
was the understanding of our Council & -
the understanding of the Chiefs now present -
who have signed that paper. This explana-
tion ~~may~~ have been omitted by the Genl.
in his Journal, to which you have called -
our attention. When we shall suppose, you -
have received this letter, we will call on you -
to receive of our reply. We are with great -
respect your friends & brothers.

Ap otter Y sholo ^{his} +
John Stidham +
A sholo otico +
Mad Wolf +
Menawee +
Tuske Kee Tustenuggee +
Selotaa +

Siimpochy Barnard +
Spanli Tustenugge +
Lekalbes le omuels +
Loosa Tustenugge +
Nahetthee Hopie +
Lodagi +

J. H. Riapo wny.

Wm H. Barnaby M. I. L. Interpreter.
David Vann J.

Han
Wm
Bain
Hans

Grothley sholo, & others

Morris Hotel

Decr 30. 1825-

Acknowledges magnanimity of the Presidents,
interview with him &
proceeds relative to the
differences in the Greek
nation, execution of
McIntosh &c &c -

CW

(S)

Brown's Hotel
10th December 1825.

Hon. Secy. of War.

A friend & Brother,

As our letter of the 5th inst. in reply to ours of the 3rd has been addressed to, with the utmost respect & deliberation. To our great Fatherly talk, we respectfully answer, that we entertain the highest respect for his magnanimity & kindness. & officially take this method to express to him our cordial & grateful obligations, in permitting us to take him by the right hand, & to express our grievances to the general government; & personally to submit ourselves, our rights & our happiness to his protection.

It appears from your expression that "the differences" (in our Nation) "were not ended, but stilled"; you labor under the impression that our internal agitations, are of a character materially to distract our repose. These differences among ourselves are not the leading evils -

we, we, permitted to close them, by the authority our own laws. M'Ginty has been laid asleep by that authority, & from it, the balance of his party sought refuge in Georgia where protected as a party distinct from the Nation by Georgians, & on them, high honors, rights & powers, were ascribed & fabricated, unknown to the proper authorities of our Nation. At the request of Genl. Gaines at Broken Arrow Council in June last, we solemnly pardoned "to all intents & purposes", this party, & permitted them, to return among us & then swell in peace & obey the Laws. Instead of doing this, they are now here in this City, for purposes best known to themselves, & which we have reason to think, are in opposition to the Muscogee Nation. By what power they are sent, & what power they represent, would, if enquired for, be hard to determine. We make this remark, not that we wish to recall, the charitable act of our Nation, in pardoning this party, but to show, that by it, they have not as yet been placed on the Foot stool of Repentance.

J. H. —

The greatest source of ^{our} trials & which is beyond our control, is, in the ratification of the base treaty, entered into, at the Indian Spring. The nature of your law, it appears, is such, that after a Treaty is ratified, tho' unjustly effected, can not be annulled, but by the Great Council fire of the United States. We are far from indulging any suspicions of the Honesty of the Council fire, that ratified the Treaty. Ignorant of our laws, the names our Headchief, & seeing on a Long Talk, a long list of Indian Names, they accepted the Treaty, under the presumption that it was effected in good faith. Our Nation as soon as practicable informed our father, the President, their positive disavowal of said Treaty & in a respectful official manner, refused to receive a single dollar of the money, stipulated to be paid by that Treaty. As we were & are now anxious to aid our Great father, in restoring tranquility to our people, by giving to the possession of Georgia, a portion our Lands, we yielded to our Great Father's Kinders & promised as the basis

of an arrangement), to surrender our Lands to the Chattochoochy river. Painful as the effort was to us, we cannot claim credit to ourselves, in promising a part of our Territory to effect a reconciliation of troubles, not occasioned by us, but by those who would have malized the benefits of those Lands.

We have reconsidered our Father's proposition & we still find, that our Nation could not subsist on the Land, after giving up the charted limits of Georgia. And as for an Emigration to the West, our eyes are overwhelmed at the thought. We therefore prostrate ourselves, to the protection of the United States. Let the Great Council Fire look on us as Children, guilty of no other crime, but being placed, by the Great Master of Briath, in the neighborhood of Georgia. Let them, picture to themselves, our aged ~~Brothers~~ ^{& one} Females, in tears, calling upon them to cure & restore their Mother Earth, which is now pierced, by Walkers in the Night, & who have permitted Strangers to stand ready to kick her Sons, from off her Bosom.

As we -

As we have not had the pleasure of addressing, from the mouth of our Speaker, our Father the President, we respectfully request an interview with him in the presence of our Great Brother, the Secretary of War. From our ~~own~~^{lips} state our grievances to him, before he submits the papers connected with the Treaty, to Congress.

We do not wish to obtrude too much on his time, which at this time must be precious: but it would if permitted, afford us some consolation, to speak even of our sorrows, to our Father. If this interview is granted, we would wish, the Secretary of War to invite the McGaughy party to be present, & in case of refusal, that their Interpreter should attend & listen to the interpretation of our Talk in detail.

We are your friends & Brothers,

Opposite Moholot
^{his}
John Stidham
^{man}
^{his}
^{work}

Gobolo chiv his
mark + mark

Mad Wolf his
mark + mark

Menawee his
mark + mark

Jus Keeke Jus tennugie his
mark + mark

Selocata his
mark + mark

Jim pooley Barnard his
wife + mark

Apanli Jus tennugie his
mark + mark

Charles Comuels his
mark + mark

Coosa Jus tennugie his
mark + mark

Nahethoo Hopie his
Lodaysi his mark + mark

John Ridge Sec'y Creek Dept.

David Vann do

Mr. Hamby

P. J. S.

Opotkeyoholo, & others
 Creek deputations
 To Secretary of War
 16. Decr. 1825.

Relative to the Treaty
 of Indian Springs
 see Spec

Da

S

20

Washington. Brown's Hotel

16th Dec. 1825.

You Secy of War,

Friends & Brothers,

Yours of the 13th in reply -
to ours of the 10th has been, perused with at-
tention. The motives of an Intercessor, were
requested, which is declared by our Father,
on the ground of inconsistency to usage,
were, to show the General overindulgent,
that was well, ~~in notwithstanding~~ afraid to speak
our sentiments in the face of day.

The time approaches, when the merits of
a Treaty, so called, are to be discussed, the is-
sue of which is, in the highest degree, interesting
to our Nation. A Nation, wealthy, Powerful -
Enlightened, as yours, & whose influence is felt
beyond the expanse of Big Water, we believe -
will not suffer itself to yield, & to be trusted
blamor & knowing day divide to the prejudice
of the Creek Nation. Its character will be con-
sidered, & as politics, seem to be involved, we -

we hope, that in the war of words, the Great men will not forget, the infant object, that gave rise to discussion & unconsciously trample its integrity under foot.

The Great Nation has held many Treaties at different times & at different places. Never have they disputed a bargain, legally made, or have they been guilty of prevarication. Many years ago, the immortal Washington & Alexander very illusory & certain chiefs of our Nation shook hands & made peace at New York. The talk received from that great man, at that time, has been handed down to us, in which he promised that the U.S. would treat the Muscogees, as children - protect them from intrusion & respect their boundaries, as they should be defined by Treaties - that as long as they conducted well Peace & Protection, should be their portion, until the Great Spirit saw cause to destroy the world, either by the elements of water or fire, when boundaries & Landmarks should cease in general Oblivion. This talk has been kept by the proper authorities of our Nation to this day.

From foreign Emisaries & Super-

Superstitions fanaticism, a part of our belligerence
he came hostile & painted themselves Red.

Our Head Chiefs, the Little Prince & the -
Big Warrior with their warriors, adhered -
to good talks and assisted Genl. Jackson
to conquer this deluded people: and at Fort -
Jackson in 1814 entered into a Treaty with
the general, where peace was proclaimed -
boundaries prescribed & protection promised
etc. See told our chiefs to ~~understand~~ Land
& permit the U. S. States to populate the coun-
try all around us, & as we had been faith-
ful friends to the President, we should -
hereafter live in peace as he would keep at
a distance the bad people from our Big Water - that his friends the braves

should sleep in security & awake in -
peace. Our talks to the U. S. States have been
scrupulously observed & fulfilled & the United
States have also walked in the white path -
of truth. They are now soon to tell the -
world, whether they still intend to Respect
treaties, even with the last of their allies.
The nature of treaties is sacred & for trivial rea-
sons should not be subject to reinvestigation. Gather

In the present instance, the Creek Nation declines
the Treaty of McIntosh & certain Indians & the
United States' commissioners at the Indian -
Springs on the 12th Sept. lost to be counter -
feited & rejected contrary to usage & Justice.
A few questions may not be amiss to insert
here by way of illustration & let the inferences
be drawn as agreeable to the dictates of candor
& ~~Impartiality~~ impartiality.

Were Duncan L. Campbell & James Merri -
weather, instructed by the President, to -
treat for Lands with McIntosh & his party,
or were they sent to the Creek Nation, at the
head of which were the Little Prince & the
Big Warrior?

Were not the commissioners, at Broken -
Arrow met, by a vast body of chiefs
& then told the Nation had no land to -
sell?

Was it right, after the sense of the Na -
tion was thus given, to appoint a meeting
within the jurisdiction of Georgia, and
that at short notice.

After a meeting was so convened & the authorized
chiefs dissented & invited the commissioners
within the Nation if they had any
new communications to make, to treat with
the Nation, was it reasonable to hold official
intercourse with unauthorized individuals?

After the chiefs of the Nation were recalled
& obeyed the summons, if they were chiefs
of law grade as the commissioners say,
what object had they in sending the "inde-
fatigable Col. Williamson" to pursue &
try to induce them to come back?

When all were gone except McIntosh & his
party, what right had the commissioners
to ~~pronounce~~ pronounce the Council
to be a legal one & the Soil still Rep-
resented. And could such a Declaration
make it a lawful Council?

If McIntosh & his party were the reign-
ing authority of the Nation & an other-
wise Idol of the Nation why did the com-
missioners provide him protection in-

in the Treaty?

If a loaded gun was not in the corner
and a noose suspended over McIntosh's Head
if this law was unknown to the Georgians,
why did Gov. Grouse, for purposes of intimidation,
send his aid Col. Lamar to our
Head bchiff to tell us, that if we did
any harm to McIntosh or his friends, he would
pursue us for full satisfaction, as if the
same had been done to the people of
Georgia?

Are not all Nations entitled to
support & interpret their own laws & pun-
ish their own citizens agreeable to those laws.
And had not the Creek Nation a right to
execute an out law, who like McIntosh -
had rendered himself such: and would
not the United States, for a less offense
hang a Traitor?

Would the compact of 1802 between the
U. S. & Georgia, ~~with the~~ specifying
that the Indian title to lands should be
extinguished on "reasonable & peaceable con-
tacts", excuse an officer, in departing from

from Instructions to effect a Treaty calculated to injure a Nation?

Would such a treaty stand, made by a nobleman of France or Britain, unauthorised either by a written or verbal power & would it be insisted upon as lawful, on the ground that he had once with others been invested with diplomatic powers? And would it not be more consonant to the magnanimity of a Great Nation to render Justicto the weak than to oppress them?

As the break Nation has refused to receive a dollar of the money, stipulated to be paid in that treaty, what excuse can the Government of the U. S. make to itself in confirming a Bargain, which our Nation has not sanctioned & for which they have not value Received.

We do not expect answers in detail to the above questions, but it is our wish, that upon these principles Congress should decide. The leading principles of Justice, in all Nations will teach all Councils, that to keep clear

Keep clear of error, to decide for the up-
held Nation, as they would wish to be treat-
ed, were they in like circumstances.

Our Nation respectfully demands the repeal
of the Treaty of the Indian Spring in Feb.
last. In doing this sufficient reasons are ad-
vanced & more stronger, to be found on Earth,
than the fact, that our Nation, in its legal
Capacity was not a party to the Treaty,
& that they have refused to ratify a bar-
gain calculated to annihilate the hap-
piness of our people.

In our first letters, in the spirit of concilia-
tion & loyalty to the U. States, we agreed to
surrender all the lands east of the Chata-
hoochy River. This ought to convince the genl.
Government that we are not incapable of
Reciprocating, in proportion, to our ability, the
Liberality of the U. States. Further concessions
cannot be made & after the reasons first as-
signed, more, you cannot well demand.

We now appeal to the magnanimity of
the United States. We have travelled along
road to perform this duty. It is ordained
by the Great Creator, that we are so reduced

To Redwood or to be dependent on your -
power & money: And if, in the hugeness of
Strength, you determine to decide by power
and not by right, we shall return to our -
friends and live there, until you take pos-
session of our Country. Then shall we be
Banned from the whites & live, the life of vag-
abonds on the soil of our progenitors. We
shall not touch a cent of money for our Land
thus forced from our hands and not a drop
of a whiteman's blood will we spill. And
as fast as we are knocked in the ~~head~~ - the
throats of our wives & children are cut, by
the first ~~of~~ tide of population that know-
not law, we will then afford the United-
States a Spectacle of Emigration, which
we hope may be to a Country, prepared by
the Great Spirit for the honest and un-
fortunate Indians.

We are your friends &
Brothers.

Apostle of ^{his} photo +
work
John Shidham +
Mad wolf +

Yoholo Elliot
Menawee +
Gus Kukuk Tastenugut +
Selocla +
Jim Prochey Barnard +
Apauli Tastenugut +
Charles Connells +
Lossa Tastenugut +
Nehathue Hoopie +
Leaagi +

John Riga Sevy Creek Delegation.
David Nam do
Wm Hamby
P.A.

Orothlayoholo & others
Brown's Hotel.
Jan'y. 15. 1826

Relative to their
acquiescence to surrender
lands within the chartered
limits of Georgia &c &c

De

DG

Hon. Secy of War.

Brown's Hotel
Washington 16th Jan.
1826.

Fried HBrother.

We have perused yours of the 10th inst; in which, by order of the President, you urge our ~~acquiescence~~ acquiesce in the proposition, which demands the surrender of all our lands in the chartered limits of Georgia. Too well, & with an able tongue have you painted the Degradation of the Indian race, & ~~the~~ cause, that impels the last Remnant to the goal of their final extinction!

If in the womb of the United States winds are confined, & at their pleasure a tempest can be raised to disperse the Indians, as winds in autumn, drive before it, the leaves of the forest, cannot, they now, when all are nearly blown away, stem the torrent and permit the few to live on the soil that gave them birth. We thank the President for his parental regard, & we hope that as children, he can do us as well, east of the mississippi as in the wilds west of that river.

Speaking

Speaking of our race, you observe, In the
place of thousands, you see only a few scat-
tered bands, and these are fast disappearing.
Is there any thing in the Constitution of the
Greeks, or their Government to save them
from a like destiny?" This is an important
question we only can observe, that when
civilization shines on a Nation, they generally
grow in knowledge & in number. Look
at the Cherokees who are not only becoming
civilized, but Religion illuminates their
hearts & they worship the Great Spirit in the
same way as you do. Their population is
increasing. The Creek Nation has long
been in darkness, but now the first rays
of civilization gilds their forests, & two
Missionary stations, like stars in the night,
are seen by the Muscogee Nation & their
benefits are already enjoyed in the hearts
anticipation. We believe that we, as a -
Nation are also gradually increasing
in numbers. But if in the awful destina-
ries of the Great Spirit, we are doomed
to melt away from the face of the Earth,
may we be permitted to mingle our ashes with
the dust of our Ancestors on our own soil -

bestowed on us by the master of Breath! As we have so far agreed to surrender our Lands to the Chattahoochy, you ask, - of what avail to you would be the little country that would remain beyond. You might return to it, but would Georgia be satisfied?"

Georgia would not be satisfied, we know from what has passed. It is our policy to secure a natural boundary, as we are convinced that a dry one would not do. Our property would be exposed to continual depredation from Georgia & their range over into our Country, for which the Georgians would impeach our citizens as the cause. The Land of itself is not of so much value, if it was located east of the river. As it is acknowledged that this portion of Land, west of the river is comparatively trifling, why cannot the Georgians be satisfied, ~~now~~ with the possession to the Chattahoochy? An inch of land west of it, we we will not yield for all the money in your coffers, when our existence depends upon the recognition of the natural boundary. If it is any accommodation to the Government, we -

we will, after the last Treaty is annulled,
cede to them all the lands east of Chata-
hoochy for a reasonable compensation. If
the Georgians refuse to settle upon & take
possession of it, the compensation can -
be withheld.

We claim our Country by a-
firm title. Our fathers discovered it. We -
have it by possession & inheritance, & our
boundaries are defined by Treaties made
with yourselves. We cannot acknowl-
edge the right of a Self important King-
of England to give away Lands he never
saw & in the legal possession of a race
placed there by the God of Heaven.
If this title is not good & who can say it is
not, and if the people of the U. States anxious
for our preservation, let them protect
us as they have promised in Treaties &
permit us to flourish in our own climate
& place within our reach "Honors
trust & profit."

As the decision of Congress
is of vital importance to our Nation, we wish
to be permitted to remain and witness the
Result.

Our presence we know would be of no-
thing in our favor, but we wish to be saved
from the pain of returning with an emp-
ty mouth. What Report could we re-
turn to our Council & Head Chief of our
Nation? This request is officially made to
our Father. We hope that he will per-
mit us to remain to see our destiny
ficed. If it is not agreeable to him & if
he determines to send us away, we
as the Representatives of the Muscogee
Nation, demand the annuity due our
Nation from the Government to be
paid in our hands.

We are your friends
and Brothers
Opothle Goholo ^{his}
_{mark}
John Stickham +
Mad Wolf +
Goholo Mico +
Tuskekee Tuskegee

Menawee +
Charles Comrels +
Apauli Tustenuggi +
Timpoochy Barnard +
Coosa Tustenuggi +
Nahetuck Hoopie +

Ledagi +

John Ridge Seny. Telocota +
David Vann do

Wm Karr bly
do

Department of War

January 10. 1820

Washburne Redubit
A. G. T. & Co. Agents for

The Creek Nation / Friends & Brothers,

Your great Father

The President of the U. States viewing you as his
children and being anxious for your peace &
happiness has desired me again to call your
attention to the late acts of the Indian Agents.
This would have been done sooner, but he waited
to hear from Georgia in regard to your ~~offer~~
to bear him Georgia in regard to your ~~offer~~
proposal to make the Chatahoochee the boundary,
& give up the County east of the river. The
answer was rec'd. ~~and~~ yesterday, and ~~satisfactory~~
~~is last in consequence to you the answer from Georgia,~~

The offer is rejected.

I have hitherto explain'd to you the embassy
circumstances in which you appertin to ~~the~~ the
Treaty has placed your great Father. Upon the one
hand

hand the Treaty has been made, & ratified by his
Council, and as matters now stand he is bound to
carry its provisions into effect. Upon the other hand
not only
you protest against any measures being taken
towards fulfilling its provisions
~~in regard to it~~, but ask for its amendment, while
Georgia demands its execution. Under such
circumstances you must tell her who is the
friend of peace & who is anxious for ~~the~~ your
prosperity & desirous of obtaining at least so
much of your support to that Treaty as will
seem to Georgia safe the lands within the
Charter's limits of the State. You will
see in this our effort to urge upon you
a compliance with this ~~urgent~~ preparation,
the great anxiety of your Father for your
peace & prosperity. You are too well acquainted
with the past not to know how utterly
impotent it is for the red & the white
man

man to live & prosta together. Look at the
~~poor~~ which present reduced state of the Indian
population in every state in ^{"a people you"} which ~~they~~ were
once numerous & powerful. In the place of
thousands, you see only a few ^{scattered} ~~scattering~~ bands,
and these are fast disappearing. — ~~now as well~~
~~as ever, half off, they~~ There are ^{now} ~~any~~ their in
the constitutions of the States, in their Govt. to
save them from a like destiny? But how
whatever is your prospect, even more or than
~~was~~ ^{even more numerous than} the miles once ~~of~~ ^{from} ~~you,~~
when you look at the present, & contemplate
the future! The fires of discord are lit in
every part of the country you now inhabit — your
quiet is disturbed, and your people are held before
the blast which is thinning your numbers, like
the wind in autumn which scatters in all
directions the leaves of the forest. Will
you

you still cling to your purpose of living amidst these
desiquating circumstances, with every ~~care~~ ^{worry} to convince
you that you are as fast approaching the same
state of the Aborigines who have gone before you,
~~whose institutions~~
~~& whose life lines~~ were corrupted or much
more likely to presume them than is yours.
I wish to impress it upon you that you do it
to your ~~presently~~ ^{children} to pursue this policy which will
not only be best for you but for them also. I
~~do~~ consider you in the light of intelligent men,
and therefore it is that I reason with you;
I know your dear hearts that cherish a warm
attachment for your children, & therefore I
would point to you the way for their
happiness.

You have yourself express'd a willingness to
make the Chitryshah the boundary - of what
small to you would be the little country that
would ~~remain~~ ^{remain}

would remain beyond? You might return to it,
~~but~~ but would Georgia be satisfied? Should
you not be subject, there, to the same
enchanting consequences, which would produce
~~as~~ like those ~~have~~ in former times,
among other ~~States~~, your extinction as a
race? — Why then be so blind to your
own interests?

But there is another consideration which
you cannot as a high-minded people be insensible
to. There is ~~an~~ among Indians a feeling of
great kindness by all citizens generally. It is
wished to place them ^{all} as a people in
a situation ~~of expense~~ where they shall no
longer be subject to the ~~efforts~~ causes which
have operated hitherto to destroy them,
but where they may live and flourish

Under a Government suited to them, every
place of honor & trust & profit. The
opportunity is now offer'd to you to take
a lead in this great work. It would
become the Greek Nation to do so. Why
~~be the first to you take this step~~
not therefore ~~this~~ [&] take this noble step in the
way which is pointed out to you? —

But when you perceive very perilous condition
is nighed, the obligation appears binding over
you to do so. The Treaty has been made,
~~The contract with England profers upon you to do this. But there is no
& such engag't in as to the doing any other contr'ction of country
& ratified it.~~
~~your hand to it~~ specially to call your
attention. You have been told ~~such~~
all up hitherto has no power
over this Treaty. All that ~~is~~ remaining
for him to do is to ~~execute~~ execute
it

its provisions. He reasons with you, and
convinces you. He wishes to see you do well.
His advice is given with the best feelings.
If you resist it, he cannot answer for
the consequences. Upon the other hand
if you approve, & will act according to
his advice, you will entitle yourself
to his special protection & friendship. —
For you will in addition be paid for
your County, & have one given to you
in its stead, in all respects, ~~more~~
equal to your property. There is too much to
recommend in this proposition, to authorize
a refusal. You will regret it.
By acquiring you have a bright
prospect before you, & every thing to gain;
by

and in regard to the human action
of rejecting it, your destiny is dark, and
doubtful; ~~but~~ certain however as to those
wandering away of your people, like the nations
which once loved like you, but are now
gone! no more! —

I wish you answer as soon as you
can think well upon the prospect; &
tell you bring it in person, as it is
my wish to see you ^{all} before your return
to your homes.

I am w^t & B

Secretary of War
C. H. - L. Yokohama

July 10 1826.

D

John Ridge
to Col McKenney.
18 Jany 1826 -

Relative to Col mckennys
efforts to induce the
 Creek Delegation to make
 a treaty &c

Dg

G

Washington 18th Jan.

1896.

Col. M'Kinney -

Friend & Brother,

Your private letter
to me I recd on yesterday. It is in
these words.

"You know me. I am ~~young~~
~~and the friend~~ friend of ~~your~~ your people; and of all
red men. I need not refer you to proofs
they are to be seen ~~in~~ ⁱⁿ yr. own Country.
~~seen~~ in the schools there; and in all respects
I can therefore feel at liberty to speak
frankly to you. The Semin of war does
not know any thing of this. It is ~~not~~ my
own ^{unbiased act.} What I pleasure to say is this - advise
Appothe M'pholo, to write a few lines to the
Sury authorising him to propose to his
great father the Dommall variation suggest-
ed by the Sury, from the great bend in the
that a hoochy, following the trunk (cedar
trunk as it is called on the map) to where
it strikes the Obudu boundary. It is

It is a small thing, but it may lead
to peace & a settlement of differences -
If possible send up the letter by the
beam. I do not know that it will be
accepted. But it is worth the trial.
I advise you in the Sincerity of my
heart, and for the good of my Friends &
Brothers the Indians. R. friend & Br.

This Delegation is composed of the choic-
men of their Nation & as patriots are
second to none in the world. They
were particularly instructed to secure the
natural boundary which they have
attempted to do. A letter of the 1st
inst was yesterday rec'd which urges
them to be firm on their proposition. This
they were determined to be previously.

Gov. Cass had made large promises -
to them at Baltimore. Col. C. Brownell
has been assiduous in urging by all means
to prevail with them to yield to the
wishes of the President, so much so -
that he has altogether lost his influence
with them. Maj. Hamby in his attempt
to cooperate with the Agent is injured &
the Delegation had authorised me to wait

upon the Secy to notify that they would
shake hands with the President &
start home. Such was the state of
things when yr. letter was handed me.
I was convinced that the Secy of war had
conducted the Negotiation with great abil-
ity & was disposed to do them justice.
But on the hand I was acting in the con-
sideration of the Creek Nation. Mr. Bar-
ber's question, "is it worth the hazard to -
risk all by not yielding the little strip
of land west of the river?" came with
force to my mind. Your friendship
has prevailed & Mr. Yarn & myself
have attempted to convince them of
the validity of this Delegation, from the
least possible uncertainty as to their
Destiny. ^{to secure it} They have agreed, if the
President will accept of the proposition
of Mr. Barber to make the arrange-
ment. Mr. Yarn himself ~~and~~ ^{and} am
throued to agree with the Secy on the
~~politic and~~ articles of the Treaty. If
the President will authorise the Secy
to make this arrangement, we are ready

to commence the work, if not we —
must shortly leave & let the world
witness the result. This delegation have
no secrets to hide & what they have
already said to the Government, you
may rest assured to be strictly the
fact. If they, the Pres't. & Secy will —
make the arrangement, I am glad —
to have it in my power to close with —
them on the conditions, ^{which have been suggested,}
a subject which excites their hearts
to bleed. What ever arrangement
is made, it will be done, by the dele-
gation from a full conviction that it
is best, all things considered for them
to do so.

I am your friend &
Brother John Ridge.

Whereas the Government of the U. States
and the Creek Nation are anxious to settle -
amicably all differences which have arisen, out of -
the late unauthorized and illegal proceedings at
the Indian Springs in February last, by Duncan
G. Campbell & James Merriweather on the -
part of the U. States and Genl. Wm. Mcintosh
and many Indians: and whereas a Delegation
of the Creek Nation, clothed with full powers
to settle said difference enter into the highest re-
gard for the honor & magnanimity of the U.
States and disposed to yield as much as possible -
to the wishes of the said U. S. do enter into -
the following articles of agreement with Jas.
Barber Secretary of War, on the part of the
United States.

Article 1st. The Treaty entered into, between Duncan
G. Campbell & James Merriweather on the part of the
U. S. and Wm. Mcintosh & many Indians, at
the Illinois or Indian Springs in Geo. in February
last is hereby declared null & void and shall have
no effect, but shall forever be considered as if it had
never been made.

Article 2d. All & every one of the signers of the said -
illegal Treaty shall be compelled by the U. States
to leave the Creek Nation, and each head of a -
family shall be entitled to one miles of land of -

Land to be located in the U. States western Lands -
beyond the Mississippi and for said western Lands -
an equal quantity of acres shall be exchanged for
by the Nation east of the Chatahoochee river.

Article 3d.

If the U. States will pay the expense of the
removal of said party, who call themselves of the
~~friendly party~~ or Black town party and their number
shall be allowed to consist according to the annua-
lized of them by Genl. Gaines at the Mineral
Springs.

Article 4th.

The Creek Nation doth surrender to the
U. States all of their Lands east of the Chatahoochee
river, after deducting the quantity of Land provided
for the use of the ~~McGirt~~ town party in the 3d article,
and which is exchanged for an equal quantity of
western Lands ~~as of course~~ for the use of the ~~McGirt~~
town party of said. And it is hereby understood -
that in the division of land by the Creek Nation -
that the ~~left~~ ~~town~~ ~~boundary~~ ~~line~~ ~~will be the boundary~~
line of the Eastern Bank, up to the high water mark,
of the Chatahoochee river, except a reservation -
for the Creek Agency, the limits of which will be
described in the fifth article, shall be the boundary
line between Georgia and the Creek Nation.

Article 5th. The Creek Nation reserve to themselves
and for their own use and jurisdiction, a quantity
of Land on the east Bank of the Chatahoochee -

U.S.

when the Federal road crosses the said, to be three miles long and one & a half mile broad. The same to be so surveyed as to extend ~~the~~ it, half a mile above the Henry Leuding and road, up the river and two miles and a half below the said Leuding & road down the river and to be one mile & a half back from the river of oversaid.

Article 6th. The bank station shall possess all the Islands in the Chatahoochee river, and all the ferries on the roads ^{that run} through the station and shall at all times demand & enjoy a reasonable toll on passengers, such as is now paid on said ferries.

Article 7th. John Ridge and David Sloan shall have & possess a reservation, ^{one} of six square or 640 acres each, in fee simple, Ridges Reservation to be located on the east Bank of the Chatahoochee on the Mineral Spring road, called Coosaandy Ferry, to be so surveyed as to include the best portion of the soil extending to, up & down the river & as far back from the river as will embrace and complete the number of acres of oversaid.

Davens Reservation to be located on the east Bank of the Chatahoochee, at the mouth of Gosooka or first Big branch above the federal road to extend up the river from the mouth of said branch & as far back from the river as will make a good

8

Agree to cede the 640 acres of our said.

Article 8. The Reservations shall be surveyed at the expense of the U. States agreeable to the description of said Reservations, previous to the survey to be made by Georgia of the added Land & the Result to be reported to the War Department by the Surveyor.

9th. The U. States agree to pay, to individuals who reside on the added land, for their improvements which add real value to the lands on which such improvements are made.

10th. The U. States in consideration of the said cession and the surrender of the title and claim on the part of the Creek Nation, promise to pay the Delegation of said Nation now in this city two hundred thousand dollars at the Ratification of the Treaty and one hundred thousand more at the expiration of one year; besides twenty thousand dollars per annum, in perpetuity or forever.